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STATE OF MAINE REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
RFP BIDDERS CONFERENCE and

SUBMITTED QUESTIONS & ANSWERS SUMMARY
	RFP NUMBER AND TITLE:
	202102023 - Maine Rural State AmeriCorps Grants 

Application Instructions and Guidelines

	RFP ISSUED BY:
	Volunteer Maine,

The Commission for Community Service

	BIDDERS CONFERENCE LOCATION:
	Virtual

	BIDDERS CONFERENCE DATE/TIME:
	Part A - 3/17/2021 + Part B - 3/24/2021 

Times: 8:30 a.m. – 12:00 p.m., local time; session repeats 1:00 p.m.- 4:30 p.m.

	SUBMITTED QUESTIONS DUE DATE:
	March 29, 2021, no later than 4:00 p.m., local time.

	QUESTION & ANSWER SUMMARY ISSUED:
	March 30. 2021

	PROPOSAL DUE DATE:
	April 16, 2021, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time.

	PROPOSALS DUE TO:
	Proposals@maine.gov 


Provided below are questions asked and the responses given at the Bidders Conference PART A.
	1
	Question

	
	Are Current Rural Grantees eligible?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes, successful Rural applicants are eligible to apply for a second three-year cycle within the Rural model.  After two cycles, Rural grantees must apply to the larger, regular formula model to continue as grantees


	2
	Question

	
	Do Current Rural Grantees need to complete Attachment F?  As an applicant for a second round of rural grant funding how should we indicate in the columns if something is already done?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes, Current Rural grantees should indicate the status of each element.  For those for which a past completion date is available, please use the known date.  For those complete but for which a date is unknown, indicate that the element is complete.  For others, enter a proposed completion date.


	3
	Question

	
	What is the difference between Full-time positions and serving in a full-time capacity?

	
	Answer

	
	AmeriCorps uses the term full-time in two different ways.  The first manner is in reference to 1700-hour, year-round positions, also known as full-time positions or full-time slots.  The other refers to positions in which a member serves 40 hours each week (or nearly that amount), so in a full-rime capacity, meaning the member has a full schedule with AmeriCorps and would not be engaging in outside work during their period of service.  Rural grants, no matter what length of service, 900-hour, 1200-hour or 1700-hour positions, must engage members in full-time capacity service.  Thus 900-hour positions only last half a year and 1200-hour positions last for 9 months or through a school year, for example.


	4
	Question

	
	Since all of the positions are full-time capacity, we are expected to pay insurances for all positions, correct?

	
	Answer

	
	The answer is complex. Part time (non-1700-hour) positions where members are performing 40-hour per week service are ELIGIBLE for insurance coverage, but federal law does not require it.  The intent of the rural program is to encourage placement in rural areas and it is more likely that positions will be filled when benefits like health insurance and loan forbearance are available; therefore, we encourage rural programs to offer them.  With members serving in full-time capacity, grantees have the opportunity to provide benefits to members serving in all lengths of service available in the Rural RFP.  Benefits are covered on pages 24 and 25 of the RFP.


	5
	Question

	
	Does AmeriCorps include funding to oversee AmeriCorps members?

	
	Answer

	
	As noted on page 10, “AmeriCorps grants PARTIALLY cover the expense of operating an AmeriCorps program and do not cover general organizational expenses. Local cash and in-kind resources are required to cover the full implementation of the program.”  Grants can be used to fund staffing, or any other cost associated with the program, but the federal funding is not enough to cover both staffing and member costs.  In fact, the federal portion is not, by itself, even enough to cover all member costs.


	6
	Question

	
	Is there a conflict between AmeriCorps stipend amounts and minimum wage laws

	
	Answer

	
	There is no conflict because AmeriCorps service is exempted from the definition of employment in both federal and state law.


	7
	Question

	
	Can Programs earn income?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes, programs can earn income and even charge for AmeriCorps services.  In a cost reimbursement grant, high levels of income can result in reduced federal award portions under the assumption that programs with high income need less funding.  In a fixed cost award, you don’t report financial information, so program income is not a factor in grant management.


	8
	Question

	
	For Programs with summer programming, is it necessary to straddle grant years?

	
	Answer

	
	Programs cannot start prior to mid-August in the year they apply, so applicants anticipating AmeriCorps supported summer programming should delay their start to later in the summer and begin summer programming in the summer at the end of the first year of funding if they want to avoid a grant year that starts and ends in the middle of summer programming.


	9
	Question

	
	How is community defined?

	
	Answer

	
	The Community served is largely defined by the applicant, within a reasonable person standard.  Rural grants are single site grants, so the geography of the community is limited to the area that can reasonably be served from that service site.  In northern counties, that might be considerably larger than it could be in greater Portland.  Applicants should thoughtfully consider the distribution of the beneficiaries they plan to serve.


	10
	Question

	
	Isn’t a Theory of Change different than a Logic Model?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes, though AmeriCorps does overlap these concepts to a considerable extent.  Please carefully answer the narrative prompts in the Theory of Change section and then use the Logic Model format to illustrate the key elements in graphic format.


	11
	Question

	
	Are AmeriCorps stipends taxed?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes. Grantees withhold taxes based on a member submitted IRS form W-4, as you would do with employees.  Because members receive a very low income, most receive the majority, or all of the withholdings refunded when taxes are filed.


	12
	Question

	
	Fitting the text into the logic model is a challenge given its size, do you have recommendations?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes, the logic model is limited to three pages as printed from the application database.  Applicants should use a very abbreviated style to communicate key concepts but use the Theory of change narratives to fully illustrate their need, grant activities, and outcomes. Logic model sample is included as Attachment H.


	13
	Question

	
	Can an AmeriCorps volunteer serve as a grant writer?

	
	Answer

	
	The general answer is no.  While AmeriCorps VISTA members can raise organizational funds, AmeriCorps State members cannot.  A small portion of State member’s time can be dedicated for raising funds for the AmeriCorps project itself; for example, a tutoring program could raise funds for student texts used during the tutoring but cannot raise funding for other agency activities. No AmeriCorps member of any time can write a federal application.


	14
	Question

	
	How many members can you apply for?

	
	Answer

	
	Rural grantees can apply for between two and five Member Service Years (MSY).  MSY’s are analogous to Full Time Equivalents.  Programs utilizing part-time position types must have enough to aggregate up to at least two but not to exceed the maximum of five.  The Fixed amount Budget attachment on page 40 contains a useful tool to chart to determine the total number of MSY’s you are considering. See also, RFP page 9.


	15
	Question

	
	What effect does AmeriCorps have on welfare benefits?

	
	Answer

	
	AmeriCorps stipends are excluded from some, but not all, income calculations for federal benefits.  Programs are provided with this information during initial training.  It is not information that directly impacts program application budgets.


	16
	Question

	
	Do we need to budget for Childcare costs?

	
	Answer

	
	Childcare reimbursements are paid directly by the federal agency to childcare providers so they are not included in application budgets.  Programs are responsible to inform members of the benefit and assist them in accessing it, but it is not included in the cost per member calculation. Please see page 25 of the RFP for description of the childcare benefit.


	17
	Question

	
	Is the $16,300 CPM likely to increase with the new Relief Act?

	
	Answer

	
	It is quite possible that this may occur given language included in the bill.  Any required increase is added to the living allowance will also be added to the Cost per member limit.  We won’t know the final answer to this until the final rules are promulgated by the agency likely in April.  We will have time to incorporate any required changes to application budgets if necessary.


	18
	Question

	
	Can an AmeriCorps member extend for a second or third year?

	
	Answer

	
	Yes, AmeriCorps State members can service up to four terms, no matter their length.  Members can only earn the equivalent of two full-time education awards, even if they serve more terms.  They could serve but not earn an education award if they have already earned the maximum ed award benefit.


	19
	Question

	
	Can they [AmeriCorps members] do community surveys

	
	Answer

	
	Certainly.  AmeriCorps members can collect data and assess community conditions related to their service assignments.  Applicants should consider this in designing theories of change and establishing the member activities included in the logic model.  It is unlikely that members would be approved to ONLY do community surveys as it would be unclear what the benefit of that service is; and members may not engage in political activity, so any surveys must be a part of allowable and approved service.


	20
	Question

	
	The RFP calls for 1700 hrs for 44 weeks which is 38 hrs/wk. Then the RFP stipulates that FT serve is 40 hrs/wk. When you get a chance please clarify?

	
	Answer

	
	The RFP uses 44 weeks as a general guideline for 1700-hour positions because work weeks frequently contain holidays, possible sick days or requests for time away from the program.  1700 hours divided by 40 hours equals 42.5 forty-hour weeks.  The additional week and a half in the estimate allows for the possibility of some weeks with fewer days and therefore fewer hours.


	21
	Question

	
	What skills will the AmeriCorps volunteers have?

	
	Answer

	
	Because the program establishes their own qualifications and recruits their own members, programs can seek members with whatever qualifications they desire.  There are programs that only recruit law school graduates on one hand and others that only seek previously incarcerated individuals.  Programs should, however, be cognizant that highly specific qualifications can reduce the size of the pool of available to recruit from.  Since filling positions is critical to success, programs should eb thoughtful in balancing the need to fill positions with the desire to select candidates with certain skills.  Of course, all civil rights and fair enrollment practices must be in place, regardless of qualifications desired.


	22
	Question

	
	Please give us an idea of the cost and time commitment involved in Service Enterprise and when it is so I can factor this into the budget

	
	Answer

	
	Service Enterprise is not required until the second year of the grant cycle so it does not need to be included in the budget for initial applications.  Almost all of the costs associated with the training are covered by the Commission except for the Service Enterprise Diagnostic, which is $300.


	23
	Question

	
	20% is the maximum for training? Just confirming

	
	Answer

	
	Programs may allocate no more than 20% of member service time to training.  This is an aggregate across all of the serving members’ time. So, hypothetically, one member might exceed 20% of their hours but another would have less than 20% so the average across the member pool was under 20%.  Also, it is based on the members serving.  You cannot count your filled and open positions, take 20% and use that as the total hours available for those in the filled positions.


Provided below are questions asked and the responses given at the Bidders Conference PART B.
	1
	Question

	
	With the VB program should the account be in the name of VBRP or the town of Van Buren (the fiscal agent)?  The planning grant was done as VBRP, even though the fiscal info came from the town of VB.

	
	Answer

	
	Applicants should assess the strength of their own organization and the strength of any potential fiscal agent.  For those considering a fiscal agent arrangement, the legal applicant is typically the agent.  A significant number of points in the review are derived from the fiscal management capability of the legal applicant so agencies should consider what arrangement will allow them to demonstrate the strongest fiscal health and grant management practices in their applications.


	2
	Question

	
	What’s the date of the Commission meeting for [final] review of these grant proposals?

	
	Answer

	
	The Commission meets on the third Friday of most months.  Page 15 of the RFP includes the following: “The Commission will vote on funding recommendations at the regular May 2021 business meeting”. Other information regarding the review process can be found on pages 14-15.


	3
	Question

	
	Where should we include data about previous grant program successes?

	
	Answer

	
	There are two specific opportunities for current rural grantees and others to share past successes.  The Organizational capacity narrative offers an opportunity to provide details of engaging volunteers, including AmeriCorps, in meeting organizational mission. Attachment F also offers opportunity to demonstrate implementation of practices specific to AmeriCorps implementation.  Further, other narrative prompts leave room for applicants to describe past success as evidence for implemented procedures and practices


	4
	Question

	
	As a recompete is it safe to assume that we do not prepare this [Attachment F] when we submit File#1

	
	Answer

	
	As noted in the answer to an earlier question submitted in part 1 of the bidders conference, all applicants must complete Attachment F.


	5
	Question

	
	Are two organization charts, one for programs and one for board governance OK?

	
	Answer

	
	The requirement to submit an Organizational chart is intended to give reviewers a clear picture of where the proposed AmeriCorps program will reside within the organizational structure.  You should submit whatever visual representation(s) are needed to accomplish this.


	6
	Question

	
	Our audit is delayed as we are working with the accountant to untangle an issue. It is possible that we will get it complete by Apr 16 but not sure. How should we handle this?

	
	Answer

	
	Applicants should submit their most recently completed audit.


	7
	Question

	
	When is the actual amount [of the funding] disbursed to agencies under fixed price?

	
	Answer

	
	Fixed price grantees submit a monthly hour report in the grant management software which serves as an invoice and are paid based on the number of hours completed by enrolled members.  


	8
	Question

	
	Are the hours served based on 40 hr/wk or 38 hr/wk for FT [when payment is made]?

	
	Answer

	
	The reimbursement is not based on a weekly amount, but rather on a rate derived from the total predicted hours and the cost per member approved.  For example, if a program has been approved for 2 MSY and a grant of $20,000, the total number of hours is 1700 per MSY or a total of 3400 hours.  $20,000 dived by 3400 hours is a rate of $5.88 per awarded hour.  Invoices are paid at this rate times the number of hours served up to each member’s expected 1700 hours. This will vary for each applicant based on number of MSY and Cost per MSY approved.


	10
	Question

	
	I think we want to go fixed price grant but...we already started an application for cost reimbursement. How to I fix this?

	
	Answer

	
	Simply create a new application under the correct NOFA and delete the incorrect one in the application database.  There is also a function on the Applicant Info page in your existing application that allows for you to select a different NOFA.


Provided below are submitted written questions received and the Department’s answer.
	1
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	As I look at the logic model and performance measures it is unclear to me whether we should be measuring how many kids get the service because of the work of volunteers or how many hours of service the kids will receive as a result of volunteer service.  Here's an example: we can take 9 kids camping with our members and staff out of a group of 11. If we have volunteers we can take all 11. If we take four different cohorts of kids out camping and we can take 2 additional kids from the cohort out each time is that 8 kids or 8 kids times the number of camping trips? So if we have additional programs, say bird watching, and we take 8 kids on that trip but they are the same 8 who have been served by previous expeditions do we count those kids twice?

	
	Answer

	
	Part A--Performance measures should include targets that represent the results of your AmeriCorps Program and not just service provided by AmeriCorps Members.  If your members serve 50 kids and the volunteers, they recruit serve 40, your program has served 90 kids.   How you chose to represent this in a logic model depends on how you represent the efforts of members and of volunteers in the model.  If you have separate rows for members and volunteers you might want to separate the numbers served – if you include the activities of members and volunteers in the same row, there is no need to separate them.

It is important – always – to make sure that each individual served by your program is counted only once when they receive the same service (i.e. don’t count the kid twice if they are served on different days by a member and by a volunteer if both are providing mentoring service).
Part B – Assuming your camping trips are all part of the same intervention and your cohorts contain entirely different kids, you would count the number of individuals served. In your example that is 2 individuals in each of 4 cohorts served by the volunteers for a total of 8; and 9 individuals in each of 4 cohorts served by the members & staff for a total of 36.  The grand total of 44 individuals taking part in the camping trips.  If some of the kids went on more than one trip, you would only count them once, and your grand total would be lower.

Part C – If the kids on the birdwatching trips are the same kids that went camping AND both types of expeditions are part of the same intervention (mentoring) then you would not count the kids again because they are already a part of the count of the number of individuals served.  The only time you would count the same individual in more than one performance measure would be if they were part of two separate interventions in your approved model with two separate performance measures.  Let’s say you have a mentoring performance measure and a measure for serving children of military families. If five of the kids who went camping (counted for the mentoring intervention) were also children of military families, you would count them in the large group for the mentoring PM and then also record the same five in the Military families PM


	2
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	V.  Instructions for Narratives, part B. Program Design
	In the RFP it says under instructions for performance measures, The performance measures may be extracted from the proposal and used separately from the full application after awards are made. Thus, all information requested in the National Performance Measure Instructions must be included in the text of the performance measures themselves, and it must be evident in the performance measure text that all definitions and requirements outlined in the National Performance Measures Instructions and this RFP are met.  Applicants should limit the amount of duplicate information they include in the narratives, focusing on ensuring performance measure required text is complete.

BUT, on pg 33 under instructions for narrative it asks for the same complete information.  
2. Intervention (8 points) Describe clearly:

•  The core activities that define the intervention or program model that members will implement or deliver including:

  o   The duration of the intervention (e.g., the total number of weeks, sessions or months of the intervention).

  o   The intensity of the intervention (how often, how much for how long; e.g., hours per session, # of sessions).

  o   The target population for the intervention (who will participate or benefit; e.g., disconnected youth, people who have been unemployed for at least 12 months).

•  The proposed roles and activities of AmeriCorps members, and outline roles of key partners. Provide a draft weekly schedule for the AmeriCorps members.

•  How the proposed intervention aligns with the identified community need.

•  The role of community volunteers in the program and what part AmeriCorps members will play in engaging and supporting community volunteer involvement. 

Our question is: Does this mean the full description of the intervention is in the performance measures and only a summary in the narrative? The other way around. Until we read this our plan was to make sure that was we said in the narrtive was also said under the description of the intervention in the performance measures.

	
	Answer

	
	Performance measures assess only service activities a program deems the most representative of its effort and do not assess all interventions conducted by a program. The narrative should succinctly describe the full set of interventions, in other words, the entire program model.


	3
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	X. Performance Measures
	Regarding Performance measures module.

The system does not have a the "add user outputs" button under capacity building performance measures. It does have the add user outcomes button but the outcome listed in the RFP is too long for the character box.

I've tried both google and Internet Explore edge. Same result. How shall we resolved this?

	
	Answer

	
	As noted during the demonstration of the module during the bidders conference, please select the only available Output (G3-3.4: Number of organizations that received capacity building services) and on the subsequent Data Collection screen used to set Output targets and described instrument, enter a target of one (1) and in the Enter Instrument Description field, enter “Measure includes only grant recipient organization”.  Under select Method choose “Other”.
For the Outcome Text, abbreviate as necessary.  For example: “Number of additional Service units or activities done by leveraged volunteers”


	4
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	V.  Instructions for Narratives, part B. Program Design
	Under the need section where it asks for locally relevant data, is data from expert sources, like school principals, acceptable?

	
	Answer

	
	The Need narrative prompts request “locally relevant” data indicating the need is “prevalent and severe”.  It is up to the applicant to determine the source and content of the data used to respond.  In general, published facts and figures receive higher ratings than testimonials, but compelling data can come from any reliable and valid source.


	5
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	V.  Instructions for Narratives, part B. Program Design
	Should the need statement apply to all three Performance Areas or just one?

	
	Answer

	
	The need statement in the narrative should emphasize the need for services in the community.  The Member Development and Strengthening Community, or Capacity Building, are not separate need, but are strategies to meet the need identified in the community.  Your logic model may include needs related to these two strategies.


	6
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	V.  Instructions for Narratives, part B. Program Design
	Under 3. Funding Priority: requirements in table on p 18. Does this refer to the chart on p 16?

	
	Answer

	
	Funding priorities are listed beginning on page 12. Regulatory requirements referenced in the prompt refer to the table and list on page 17 of the RFP


	7
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 16, Comparison of AmeriCorps Program Types
	On the chart on page 16 it says Members can serve terms of less than 1700 hours over a 12-month period except the Rural state ameriCorps model but on p 2 "the proposals ...  may only propose full-time hours of service for members (1700 hours over 44 weeks, 1200 hours over 32 weeks or 900 hours over 25 weeks)

	
	Answer

	
	The full answer is provided on page 2, as noted.  The title of the page 16 chart includes the following: “(examples; not complete). Please also see paragraph 2 on page 9


	8
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	B. Maine Rural State AmeriCorps Programs
	On p. 9, is volunteer recruitment and management considered direct service to the public?

	
	Answer

	
	In general, volunteer recruitment and management are tactics used in AmeriCorps programs to increase the capacity of the agency to address the identified need(s).  Recruitment of local volunteers is a required element of all AmeriCorps programs, no matter what their primary service activity entails. In some programs that select Capacity Building as their primary service activity, volunteer recruitment and management can be a direct service activity, but for most it is a way to develop sustainability after the grant term and extend the efforts of the AmeriCorps members during their service.  


	9
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	VIII. Documents, item k
	Re: unions: The service site of this program is not unionized but we do operate at the school at various times. Should I get a letter from the union? What should it say?

	
	Answer

	
	Please see page 38-39 of the RFP, Part VIII, item k.

Since you, the applicant, are not unionized, #1 Labor Union Concurrence does not apply.  However, if you are placing members at a site that is unionized, like a school, and the members “will be engaged in the same or substantially similar work as employees represented by a local labor organization”, then you need to follow the instructions for #2, Displacement Assurance.  

This does not require a letter from the union, rather it requires a letter of assurance from you, the applicant.  

In any case, you may want to consult with labor representatives at the school to determine a) what unions are represented at the site – schools often have more than one for different types of employees, and b) whether the services your members are providing are the same or substantially similar to that of any of the unions represented at the site.


	10
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	
	How many (approximate) AmeriCorps members serve in Maine through Volunteer Maine?

	
	Answer

	
	Because the number on any given date only includes individuals currently in service and does not include the people who have already completed service this year, nor positions that are as yet unfilled, we can offer the number of positions awarded to the state.
Positions awarded in Volunteer Maine funded programs for 2020-21 = 530.  There are other members that serve through national direct programs, AmeriCorps VISTA and AmeriCorps NCCC that are neither funded nor administrated by Volunteer Maine.
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